بسم الله الرحمن الرحيم



Sudan University of Science and Technology



College of Animal Production Science and Technology

The Effect of adding graded levels of *Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-cyminum*mixture on broiler performance

أثر إضافة مستويات متدرجة من مخلوط الكسبره والكمون على الأداء الإنتاجي للدجاج اللاحم

Dissertation Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degreeof B.Sc. (Honour) In Animal Production Science and Technology

Submitted by:

- 1. AbdallahEdress Adam Elradi
- 2. Ali Abdelseed Mohammed Alamin
- 3. Mohammed Almaki Mohammed Alkhider
- 4. Mohammed Azrac Altom Abdallah
- 5. MohandAbakerAhmedAbaker

Supervisor:

Dr. Elfadil Ahmed Adam

بسم الله الرحمن الرحيم

الإستهلال:

قال تعالىي:

و"أنزلنا من المعصرات ما "ء ثجاجا (14 إلذُ خرج به حبا ونباتا (15)" سورة النبأ

صدق الله العظيم

بكل حُب وإمتنان نهدي ثمرة جُهدنا هذا إلي من هُن في الدَياة حياة إلي أُمهاتنا إلى:

*حواء إبراهيم الرضى

*عآئــشه حامد مـهدى

*عآئشه البشير أحمد

*زهراء ادم عبدالله

*مقبولة عبد الرحمن أبكر

إلى آبائنا الذين بذلوا كل شي حتى نصل إلى هذة المرحله،الي كل روح طاهره رحلت كانت تؤمن بنا وتدعمنا، إلى أجز ائنا الأخري الجميلة التي تشبه ننا أخرواننا وأخواتنا، وإلى الذين صارو جزءا منا أصدقائنا ولكل من نعرفهم.

Acknowledgement

We are grateful almost to Allah who gives us the health and more of patience to complete this work. Our wishes to express special appreciation and gratitude to our supervisor Dr. Elfadil Ahmed Adam ,for his suggestions, guidance and supervision during this study.

Thanks and appreciation extended to MohmmedEdressChoua ,OllaEmad, lobna Osman, Hassan Adam Elradi ,Zahra Adam ,SlimaNorean and Osman Alkhider for unlimited support to complete this study .

Finally we thank all people who help us throughout our study.

Abstrac

Ninety sixe day old unsexed broiler chicks (Ross 308)were randomly distributed into 4 experimental groups of 24 chicks, each group was furthered subdivided into 4 replicates with 8 birdeach, cuminum cyminum and coriandrum sativum were ground separately into a fine powder and then mixted at a ratio of (1:1) and then added to the basal diets resulting into four experimental diets.diet(A) with outcuminum cyminum and coriandrum sativum mixture serve control, and 0.75) of coriandrum sativum and cuminum cyminum mixture respectively. the experimental diets were fed for 5 weeks.

theperformance data in terms of live body weight (g/bird), feed intake (g/bird) , weight gain (g/bird) and feed conversion ratio (g feed/g gain) were recorded. mortality was recorded when occurred. At the end of the experiment three birds from each replicate were randomly selected, slaughtered and eviscerated, liver, heart and gizzard were weighted individually and recorded. Statistical analysis were made by analysis of variance for completely randomized design. The results revealed a significant improvement, feed intake, feed conversion ratio fed coriandrumsativumand cuminumcyminum mixture compared with the control group. (2599.12,2471.89) and (2491.95g/herd). Feed conversion ratio on group The result showed that there were no significant differences diet ,the other there diets (B, C, and D) contained graded levels (0.25, 0.5 in gizzard weight among the treatments butsignificant differences were observed in heart and liver weight .It could be concluded that feeding coriandrumsativum and cuminumcyminum mixture to broiler increase feedintake and feed conversion ratio, but had no effect on weight gainand final live body weight. No significat differencobserved between the bird fed the control diet these fed es were coriandrumsativumandcuminumcyminummixturein weight gain of finalbody weight.

ملخص الدراسة

تم استخدام 96 كتوت (سلالة روس 308) غير مجنسة عمر يوم في هذه الدراسة, وتم تقسيمها عشوائيا الى اربعة مجموعات تجريبية تحتوي كل مجموعة على 24 كتكوت . وكل مجموعة قسمت الى 3 مجموعات بواقع 8 كتكوت لكل مجموعة . تم طحن الكسبرة والكمون كل على حدى وتم خلطهما بنسبة 1:1 . وتمت اضافتهما الى العليقة الاساسية لينتج عن ذلك اربعة انواع من العليقة , العليقة (أ) لاتحتوي على خليط الكسبرة والكمون واستخدمت كعليقة تحكم . العلائق الاخرى (ب,ج,د) تحتوى على خليط الكسبرة والكمون بنسب (0.25, 0.50, 0.75 %) تواليا . تم استخدام العلائق التجريبية لمد 5 أسبوع .تم تسجيل الاداء الانتاجي للكتاكيت متمثلا الوزن الحي (جرام / طائر), العلف المستهلك (جرام / طائر), الوزن المكتسب (جرام / طائر),ومعدل التحويل الغذائي (جرام علف ماكول / جرام وزن مكتسب) . حالات النفوق تم تسجيلها حال وقوعها. فينهاية التجربة تم اختيار طائرين من كل مكرر وتم ذبحهما وإزالة الريش والأحشاء, وتم وزن القانصه والكبد والقلب فرديا وتسجيل أوزانها. ثم تم تحليل البيانات المتحصل عليها بواسطة تحليل التباين (ANOVA) بالتصميم كامل العشوائية . وأظهرت النتائج تحسن كمية العلف المستهلك في الدجاج المغذى على عليقة تحتوي على خليط الكسبرة والكمون بالمقارنة مع مجموعة التحكم, كالتالي 2599.12) (2471.89) و (2491.95, أعلى من جميع القروبات المغذية علي مخلوط الكسبره والكمون 'والقروبات المغذيه على مخلوط الكذبره والكمون و تومن ومعدل التحويل الغذائي لها كما بينت نتائج الدراسة عدم وجود فروق معنوية في وزن القانصة بين مجموعات التجربة, و لكن لوحظ وجود فروق معنوية في وزن الكبد حيث سجلت المجموعة (د) أعلى معدل ثم المجموعة وكذلك في القلب حيث أظهر قروب أعلى قيمة ثم المجموعة و واخيرا المجموعه. لا توجد فروق معنوية بين الدوجن المغذية بالعليقة التحكم والدواجن التي غذية بعليقة مخلوط مسحوق الكسبرة والكمون في الوزن المكتسب والوزن النهائي.

الكلمات المفتاحية:

أثر إضافة الكمون - كسبرة - على الدجاج اللاحم.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

NO	CONTENT	Page No
	Dedication	I
	Acknowledgement	II
	English Abstract	III
	Arabic Abstract	IV
	Table of content	V
	List of Tables	VII
	CHAPTER ONE	
1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
	CHAPTER TWO	
2.0	LITRATURE REVIEW	3
2.1	poultry production	3
2.2	Growth promoters	3
2.2.1	Antibiotic Growth promoters	3
2.2.2		4
2.3	Alternatives to antibiotics growth promoter	4
2.3.1	Prebiotics	4
2.3.2	Probiotics	4
2.3.3	Dietary enzymes	6
2.3.4	Medical plants	6
2.4	Herbas and spices growth promoter	6
2.4.1	Cuminumcyminum	8
2.4.2		8
2.5	Effect of feeding CoriandrumsativumandCuminum-	9
	cyminumon broiler performance	
	CHAPTER THREE	
3.0	MATERILS AND METHODS	10
3.1	Experimental site and duration	10
3.2	Experimental House	10
3.3	Experimental birds	10
3.4	Experimental diets	11
3.5	Rearing and vaccination program	13
3.6	The performance data	13
3.6.1	Weekly Live body weight	13
3.6.2	Weekly Feed intake	13

3.6.3	Weekly Weight gain	13
3.6.4	Weekly Feed conversion ratio	13
3.6.5	Mortality percent	14
3.6.6	Internal organs weight	14
3.6.7	Statistical Analysis	14
	CHAPTER FOUR	
4.O	RESULTS	15
4.1	Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-	15
.,,	cyminum mixture on weekly feed intake	
4.2	Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-	15
	cyminum mixture on weekly weight gain	
4.3	Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-	15
	cyminum mixture on weekly feed conversion ratio	
4.4	Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-	15
	cyminum mixture on weekly body weight	
4.5	Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-	15
	cyminum mixture on the performance of 5 weeks old	
	broiler chicks	
4.6	Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-	16
	cyminum mixture on internal organs weights	
	CHAPTER FIVE	
5.0	DISCUSSION	23
	CHAPTER SIX	
6.0	CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	24
	REFERENCES	24

LIST OF TABALS

TABLE	TITLE OF TABLES	PAGE
NO		
1	Composition and calculated analysis of the experi-	12
	mental starter and finisher diet	
2	Effect of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum	17
	mixture on weekly feed intake (g/bird)	
3	Effect of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum	18
	on mixture weekly weight gain (g/bird)	
4	Effect of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum	19
	on mixture weekly Feed Conversion Ratio (FCR)	
5	Effect of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum	20
	on mixture weekly live body weight (g/bird)	
6	Effect of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum	21
	on mixture overall performance of 5wks old broiler	
	chicks	
7	Effect adding of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum-	22
	cyminumin mixture on internal organs weight	

Chapterone

Introduction

Poultry industry has played and continue to play a leading role among the agricultural industries in many countries as it the main source of animal protein for human consumption. Poultry production as a business like any other enterprises seeks to generate profit; this is done by keeping production costs as low aspossible. Wilson and Bayer (2000) found that feeding cost is 60-70% of the total cost of production. The increasing cost of meat production is one of the most detrimental factors affecting poultry industry in Sudan. Using antibiotics as growth promoters in poultry diets increases their nutritive value and inhibits the effect of intestinal bacteria that may depress dietary fat absorption due to bile acid deconjugation. With increasing concerns about antibiotic resistance, the ban on sub therapeutic antibiotic usage in many countries led to the potential for finding alternatives to antibiotics for poultry production. Herbs and essential oils extracts could be used as natural alternatives to antibiotic growth promoters in poultry nutrition due to their antimicrobial properties. Many herbs and their bioactive constituents possess a broad antimicrobial activity, and appetite and digestion stimulating effects(Lewis et al., 2003 and Demir et al., 2008). Mansoub (2011) suggested that herbal plants have stimulatory effects on pancreatic secretions such as digestive enzymes which help to digest and absorb more amino acids from the digestive tract, Herbal growth promoter (essential oil) had significant improvement of body weight, weight gain, and feed conversion in broilers (Ibrahim et al., 1998). Also improvement in health status (Alkassie, 2009 and Kamel, 2001). Protection against pathogens such as Escherichia coli, Pseudomonasheruginosa, Enteräcocusfaecalis, Staphylococcus aureus Staphylococcus pidermis, Salmonella SP., Helicobacter pylori (Taback, et al., 1999 and Chang, et al ,2001). Although action mechanism of phytogenic and herbal feed additives varies,

a positive effect can be expressed through the better appetite, improved feed conversion, stimulation of the immune system and increased vitality, regulation of the intestinal microorganism. A number of studies has focused on the antimicrobial properties as well as growth promoting effects of various plants and plant extracts (Ocak, et al., 2008; Toghyaniet al., 2010). Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminumas natural feed additives in poultry nutrition may be of great benefit and value especially for broilers this due to their antibacterial, inflammatory, antiseptic, anti-parasitic and immunomodulatory properties. However, their influence on growth performance of broiler has not been sufficiently documented specially their cumulative properties, there fore this study aims to determine the Effect of feeding CoriandrumsativumCuminumcyminum mixture on performance and internal organs weight of broiler chicks.

CHAPTER TWO

2.0 LITRATURE REVIEW

2.1 poultry production:

poultry is defined as any type of domesticated fowl raised for meat and / or egg (Guerrero *et al*, 2010). Chicken and Turkey are among the most commonly consumed types of poultry currently worldwide in particular the United States, China, the European Union and Brazil. Sudanese Ministry of Livestock, Fisheries and Range lands (2011) estimated the poultry count in 2010 about 43316000 head and chicken meat reach about 30000 tons.

2.2 Growth promoters

2.2.1 Antibiotic Growth promoters

Antibiotic represent a group of chemical compounds produced biologically by certain plants or microorganism usually a fungus which possess bacteriostatic or bactericidal properties. some antibiotic is particularly effective against gram negative bacteria other are most particularly effective against gram positive bacteria, while some termed broad-spectrum antibiotic is effective against a wide range of both grams positive and gram negative bacteria, certain chemotherapeutic agents, such as arsenicals and nitro furans ,have been found to possess bacteriostatic or bactericidal properties and yet, at the effective level, are not toxic to chickens or other host animal Administrating antibiotics to poultry in their feed or drinking water has a major impact on the commercial production of meat for human consumption since the early 1950s(Jukes, 1972). The discovery by Jukes and his colleagues at liberal laboratories (Jukes, 1985), that aureomycin stimulated significant growth in chickens, cattle and pigs was the foundation of antibiotic growth promoter inanimals for more than 60 years. Many factors have contributed to a low cost for poultry meat to the consumer, but none has contriantibiotic growth promoter buted Asmuch consumers as have the

(AGP). Therapeutic use of antibiotic is effective against intestinal and other infections of food animal, and they are effective against colibacillosis ,coryza, fowl cholera, mycoplasmosis and salmonella infectious in chickens ,therapeutic use results in weight gain as health improves but low doses of antibiotics also stimulate weight gain in healthy animals fed nutritionally complete feed (Jukes 1977).

2.2.2 Mechanisms of growth promoter:

The mechanism by which antibacterial agents improve growth performance is not known, but several theories have been proposed because they think the small intestinal epithelium nutrients are or efficiently absorbed (Boyd and Edward., 1976; Fuller, et al., 1984). The different microorganisms responsible for subclinical infections are reduced or eliminated (Barnes, 1978).

2.3 Alternatives to antibiotics growth –promoter:

2.3.1 Prebiotics:

Prebiotic has been defined as "a non-digestible feed ingredient that give beneficial effects on host intestinal health by selectively stimulating the growth and/or activity of one or a limited number of beneficial bacterial species already resident in the large intestine "(Gibson and Roberfroid, 1995).

2.3.2 Probiotics:

Nurmi and Rantala (1974)introduced direct-fed microbial (DFM) or probiotics as a means of maintaining gut health,by controlling endemic and zoonotic agents in poultry(La Ragione and Woodward,2003).In many studies,the live microbial are known as probiotics(Morishita,et al,1997).Initially, probiotic,which means "for life"in Greek ,has been defined as "Organisms and substances whichContribute to intestinal microbial balance".this definition was subsequently refined as "A live microbial feed supplement which beneficially affects the

host animal by improving its intestinal balance of microflora" (Fuller, 1989). Probiotics must be of host origin, with stand of processing and storage, resist of gastric acid and bile, persist in the intestinal tract and adhere to epithelium or mucus (Simmering and Blaut, 2001). Probioticsaimed to produce a beneficial effect on the host by administration of viable organisms (Gibson and fuller, 2000). The direct-fed microbial concept was originally designed to restore microflora population in the gut by stimulating activates of those bactaria that have adverse on the host (Simmering and Blaut 2001; Schneitz, 2005).

2.3.3 Dietary enzymes:

Poultry diets composed of cereal feedstuffs in large amounts these cereal feedstuffs contain macro –nutrition like starch, protein and fats many others composed, such as B-glucans, xylans, arabinoxlans, pentosan, pectins, mannans cellulos lignin, mucilage and phyticacid, which cannot be digested properly by poultry digested organs (Adams, 2004). Those of which are mentioned as non-digestible feed components possibly increase intestinal viscosity and generate stress in the digestive tract which in turn cause reduction in nutrient utilization in the gut (Adam, 2004) .intestinal viscosity is a major factor limiting performance, especially in cereal based fed bird (Bedford and morgan, 1996) in many studies, it has been show that supplementation of various exogenous enzayemes improve growth performance of animals (Augspurger et al., 2003; Adedokun et al., 2004).it has been suggested by Pluske et al (2002) that dietary enzymes fasten nutrient digestion by breaking open endosperm cell wall . the enzymatic reaction can be almost entirely expected to decrease digested viscosity, and thus achieve better digestion /diffusion (Chot and Annsion, 1992). Evidence show that use of supplementary enzymes as alternatives for AGPs in poultry diets modulate the microflora and performance of broiler chickens (Choct ,2009).

2.3.4 Medical plants

Natural feed additives of plant organic are beinglived to safer, healthier and less regarded than synthetic (antibaiotics).it was estimated there are 250000-500000 species of plants (Hashemi and Davoodi, 2010). many scientists have searched for alternatives to antibiotics through utilization of the extracts or levels of some of these plants (Wenk,2000; Kamel, 2010; Alcicek.,2003). Herbs and their essential oils have been used extensively for many years in food products, perfumery and dental oral products due to their different medicinal proprieties (Suppakul et al, 2003).

2.4Herbs and spices growth Promoter:

Besides of important role of medicinal herbs, aromatic plants and spices in daily human nutrition for enhancement of taste, aroma and color of food, these additives have been usefully used in animal nutrition for improvement of health and animal wellbeing. With the ban of antibiotics use in animal nutrition due to the emergence of microbe resistance, alternative growth promoters must be founded. Removal of antibiotics as growth promoters has led to performance problems, feed conversion ratio incensement, and a rise in the incidence of certain animal diseases (Wierup, 2001). The alternatives to antibiotics as growth stimulators are numerous (Simon, 2005; kostadinović and lević, 2012; Stanaćev et al., 2011; Puvača et al., 2013). Plant derived additives used in animal nutrition to improve performance have been called "phytogenic feed additives" (Windish, et al., 2008). This forms of feed additives have recently gained interest for use in poultry with increasing numbers of scientific publications since the ban of antibiotics growth promoters in 1999. The primary mode of action of these growth promoting feed additives can be attributed mainly to the stabilization of feed hygiene and also from the beneficial effect on the gastrointestinal microbiota through controlling pathogens (Roth and kirchgessner, 1998). A component in blends of essential oils such as thymol, eugenol, curcuminandpe-

per reduces Clostridium perfringens concentrations in both the intestinal tract and faces of broilers through the entire growing period (Mitch et al., 2004). In commercial broiler production mainly powder forms essential oils of oregano (Origanumvulgare), rosemary (Rosmarinusofficinalis), sage (Salviaofficinalis), thyme (Thymus vulgaris), garlic(Allium sativum), black pepper (Piper nigrum) and chilli (Capsicum annum) are used singly or in combination as feed additives (Grashorn, 2010; Puvača et al., 2013; Puvača, et al., 2014). Garlic is one of the most traditionally used plants as a spice herb. Garlic has been used for a variety of reasons which most of them has been approved scientifically: ant atherosclerosis, antimicrobial, hypolipidemic, ant thrombosis, antihypertension, antidiabetic. (Mansoub, 2011). There are a lot of active components in garlic like ajoene, s-allylcysteine, diallylsulphide and the most active one allicine (Rahmatnejad and Roshanfekr, 2009). Allicine possibly reduces low density lipoprotein (LDL), triglycerides and cholesterol in serum(Alder and Holub, 1997) and tissues (Stanaćev et al., 2012; Puvača et al., 2014), and it has been used in treatments against cardiovascular diseases (Tanamai,et al., 2004). In broilers, it was reported that garlic, as a natural feed additive have improved broiler growth and feedconversion ratio, and decreased mortality rate (Stanaćev et al., 2010). Garlic also manifestshypocholesterolemic effects on chickens through inhibition of the most important enzymesthat participate in the synthesis of cholesterol and lipids (trihydroxy-tri-methylglutarylcoenzymeAreductase, cholesterol-7α hydroxylase and the synthesis of fatty acids). Inaddition, this additive has a relatively low market price, is added in small amounts of 0.2 to 2%, thus not increase production costs, which is of particular importance to manufacturers(Zekić, et al., 2014).

2.4.1 Cuminumcyminum:

Cuminum cyminum (cumin) is an important medical herb in Asia and has antioxidant anticholesterol and antimicrobial properties, other medical properties of the cuminor cumin extract the bacteriostatic, fungistatic, antifertility, antihelmintticand (Sagdic, et al 2002). Cumin increased activity and excretion content of bile acids (Platel; 2000) and also increased pancreas and small intestine digestive enzymes such as amylase, tripsine, chymotripsine and lipase in rats, (Srinvasan 1996, platel 2000 and Muthamma Milan, et al. 2008). Cuminumcyminum is a medical plants to fed poultry through their diets as a nutrition and medical sources for different purposes. Cumin plant is considered as one of these sources because of its nutritional and medical properties scientific information from American ministry of agriculture has shown that cumin contains most dietary nutrients such as carbohydrates fat of both saturated and unsaturated fatty acid, proteins moreover minerals, vitamins and water. (Jazani et al. 2008).have indicated the potential use of cumin essential oil for the control of some diseases caused by pseudomonas aeruginosa infections an growth of lactobacillus, (Jonas et al, 2007, Sema and Donas ,2002) .was able to identify the antimicrobial activity against E.coli infections (Ahmed et al,2004).

2.4.2 Coriandrumsativum:

Coriander (Coriandrumsativum L.) is regarded as both an herb and a spice, and reputedly has health advantages. It has been used in medicine for thousands of years (Nadeem, et al., 2013). Certain parts of this plant, such as the leaves, flowers, seeds and fruit, possess antioxidant, diuretic, anti-diabetic, sedative, antimicrobial, anthelmintic and anti-mutagenic qualities (Pathak, et al., 2011; Rajeshwari and Andallu, (2011).

2.5. Effect of feeding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum on broiler performance:

A study was conducted to identify the effect of using cumin (Cuminurncvtuinum) on the performance and some blood traits of broilers. The results showed that groups fed 0.5 and 1.5 performed significantly higher in the average live weight, weekly weight gain, feed consumption. mortality rate and feed conversion ratio. Results showed that chicks fed 1.5 developed a significant decrease in the level of cholesterol in blood serum compared to other treatments. (Galib and Al-Kassi ,2010).(Naeemasa et. al 2015) Conducted a study to determine investigate the effects of feeding different levels of coriander (Coriandrumsativum) seed powder and extract on the performance and carcass characteristics of broiler chickens, the inclusion of 952 mg/kg of coriander extract in drinking water. These results suggest that coriander diet and coriander extract in water could replace synthetic antibiotics and could be regarded as natural feed additives and growth promoters in poultry diets. (Essa, et al ,2010) conducted a study to determine the potential effect of coriander seed as growth promoting substance in broiler chicks raised under summer condition. results showed that inclosion of 25% coriander seed in broiler diets improve (p≤0.01) means live weight and weight gain. Furthermore, feed consumption and feed conversion were significantly (p<0.05) higher in the 2% coriander seed as compared with other treatments. Feeding broiler chicks 2% coriander seed as a diet ingredient resulted in a significant improvement in performance parameter. However, reports about the effects of seed on broilers are inconsistent. Some authors found thatmany and spices had positive effects on animal nutrition (Wenk, 2006, ALherbs jaff,2011). Whereas others did not find clear evidence (Windisch, et al ,2008).

CHAPTER THREE:

3.0 MATERILS AND METHODS

3.1 Experimental site and duration:

This study was carried out at the poultry farm of Faculty of Animal Production Science and Technology, Sudan University of Science and Technology, during the period from 17th January to 27th February2018 to study the effect of feeding coriandrumsativum and cuminumcyminum mixture on broiler performance.

3.2 Experimental House:

The experiment was conducted in an open sided poultry house (8x3m). The long axis of the house extended east-west facing the wind direction for efficient ventilation, the' sides of house were covered by nylon sheet during the brooding period. The house was divided into 12 experimental sections (replicates) of equal size (1 x1 m). The pen and equipment were cleaned and disinfected by phenol three days befor arrival of birds and then fresh wood shaving as litter was spreaded on the floor at a depth of 7cm. Each section was provided with one round metal feeder and round plastic drinker. The house had sufficient light. Lamps were lighted during night to complete the day hours the duration of light needed (24hours).

3.3 Experimenta birds:

A total of ninety six one-day old unsexed broiler chicks(Ross38) were purchased from Miko company. The chicks were weighed by digital balance, and the mean initial weight was recorded. Chicks were kept for one week during which feed pre started diet contained 23CP and 3200ME. kcal/kg under the same environmental conditions until the experiment started.chick were randomly divided into four treatment groups of (24chick/group)each group was fur-

thered replicated there time with (8) birds per replicate The treatment were distributed in complete randomized design.

3.4 Experimental diets:

Two isocaloricisonitrgenous basal diets (Starter and finisher) were formulated to meet the nutrient requirements for broiler starter and broiler finisher given by National Research Council (NRC,1994). Table (1) showed thecomposition and calculated analysis of the experimentalbasal diets. Dietary treatment included diet 1 (TA) withoutCoriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum mixture which served as control diet. There Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum mixture (1:1) was added in the other three treatments TB,TC and TD at rate of 0.25, 0.5 and 0.75 respectively.

Table(1)Composition(%) and calculated analysis of the experimental starter and finisher diet:

Ingredients	Starter	Finisher
Sorghum	64.8	73.5
Ground nut cake	27	19
Limestone	0.9	0.7
Di calcium phosphate	1.8	0.3
Methionine	0.1	-
Lysine	0.1	-
Super Concentrate	5	5
Salt	0.3	0.5
Oil	-	1
Calculated analysis:		
ME kj/kg	12.8082	14.5092
CP %	22.6684	20.2255
CF %	3.5865	3.3485
Ca %	1.10722	0.894
Ave Phosphate %	0.42444	0.894
Lysine %	1.15582	1.05
Methionine %	0.51716	0.41995

Super concentrate provided:

Me=9.6,Cf=2.07,Cp=38,Ca=5.39, Lysine=10.23 And Methionine=3.44

3.5 Rearing and vaccination program:

Multi-vitamin plus antibiotic were provided in water during the first seven days, in addition to sugar upon arrival of chicks. The birds were vaccinated against infectious bronchitis (I.B) and new castle disease (ND) at day 7 through drinking water. at day 14 they were vaccinated against Gambaro disease. The second dose was repeated. At day 21 and 28 against Gambaro disease and New castle disease respectively also throut drinking water.

3.6 The performance data:

3.6.1 Weekly Live body weight (LBW):

All birds were weighed at the beginning of the experiment and then on weeklybasis by the end of each week at the same time.

3.6.2 Weekly Feed intake(FI):

Feed intake is the amount of feed consumed every week, it was calculated for each replicate on weekly basis, at the end of the week the residual amount of feed was weighed and subtracted from the amount feed provided throughout the week the product was divided by the total number of bird given the average feed intake.

3.6.3 Weekly Weight gain (WG):

Weight gain was calculated by subtracting the live weight at the beginning of the week from live body weight at the end of same week.

3.6.4 Weekly Feed conversion ratio (FCR)

Feed conversion ratio was calculated from the recorded feed intake and body weight gain the using following equation:

(FCR) = feed consumed/weight gain.

3.6.5 Mortality percent (%):

Mortality was recorded when occur for each replicate and mortality (%) was calculated according to the following equation:

Dead/Total*100

3.6.6 Internal organs weight:

At the end of the 5th week two birds from each replicate were selected randomly and slaughtered eviscerated carcasses were weighted and internal organs (liver, gizzard, heart) weights were recorded.

3.6.7 Statistical Analysis:

The data collected were subjected to analysis of variance (ONE-WAY-ANOVA) and (LSD)testwas used to differentiate between means using the statistical package of social science (SPSS VERISON16) computer program.

CHAPTER FOUR

4.0 RESULTS

4.1 Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminummixtureon weekly feed intake:

Feeding diets contained mixture of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminumshowed no significant ($P \le 0.05$) differences during the first, 2^{nd} and 5^{th} week, but a significant ($p \le 0.05$) differences were noted during the 3^{rd} and 4^{th} weeks (Table 2).

4.2 Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminummixtureon weekly weight gain:

Table (3) showed that there is no significant ($P \le 0.05$) differences in the 1^{st} , 3^{nd} and 5^{th} weeks but a significantl($P \le 0.05$) differences were reported in the 2^{rd} and 4^{th} week.

4.3 Effect adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum mixture on weekly feed conversion ratio (FCR):

Table (4) showed that there was no significant ($P \le 0.05$) differences observed in first week. but feed intake significant ($P \le 0.05$) different during the 2,3,4 and 5 week.

4.4 Effect adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminummixtureon weekly body weight:

No significant ($P \le 0.05$) differences were recorded during week (1,2,3 and 5), but a significant ($P \le 0.05$) differences in week (4) were noticed (Table 5).

4.5 Effect adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminummixtureon the performance of 5 weeks old broiler chicks:

Table (6) revealed that feeding diets contain of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminumresultedinmixture no significant differences in the total weight gain and final live body weight compared to the control treatment, On the Other hand, feed intake and feed conversion ratio significantly increased in birds fed contain mixture of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum.

4.6 Effect of adding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminummixtureon internal organs weights:

Table (7) showed that feeding diets contain mixture of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum cyminum resulted in no significant differences in the gizzard weight compared to the control treatment, On the Other hand significant difference were observed in liver and heart weight

Table (2): Effect of feedingCoriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum-mixture on weeklyfeedintake (g/bird):

	0.0	0.25	0.5	0.75	Sig
Treatment	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	level
Week					
Week 1	196.87±17.01	189.56±30.11	207.46±12.21	206.20±12.95	NS
Week2	244.70±34.84	237.53±8.59	262.08±14.17	241.87±24.37	NS
Week3	230.80±26.54 ^b	270.83±6.77 ^{ab}	304.33±52.18 ^a	228.93±22.45 ^b	*
Week4	338.26±29.45 ^b	380.06±28.41 ^{ab}	365.60±18.87b	427.53±47.28 ^a	*
Week5	323.30±64.60	290.36±69.89	209.4±101.09	206.20±81.68	NS

 $^{^{}a}$, b , c Mean within the same row followed by different superscripts are significantly (P<0.05) different

^{**:} Highly significant different at (p≤0.01)

^{*:} Significant different at (p≤0.05)

Table (3): Effect of feedingCoriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum mixture on weeklyweight gain (g/bird):

	0.0	0.25	0.5	0.75	Sig
Treatment	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	level
Week					
Week1	422.33±64.73	356.33±54.5	396.33±45.44	369.33±25.16	NS
Week2	366.00±45.76 ^b	508.63±50.18 ^a	424.93±93.32 ^{ab}	489.83±79.98 ^{ab}	*
Week3	448.75±86.03	610.42±127.27	602.49±30.86	616.46±90.56	NS
Week4	366.00±45.76 ^b	508.63±50.18 ^a	458.26±30.46 ^{ab}	489.83±79.98 ^a	*
Week5	535.66±4.27	615.10±98.45	589.86±70.96	528.50±9.10	NS

 $^{^{}a}$, b , c Mean within the same row followed by different superscripts are significantly different (P<0.05)

^{**:}Highly significant different at (P≤0.01)

^{*:} Significant different at (p≤0.05)

Table (4): Effect of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminummixtureon weekly Feed Conversion Ratio (FCR):

	0.0	0.25	0.5	0.75	Sig level
Treatment	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	
Week					
Week1	2.17±0.50	1.72±0.29	1.58±0.42	1.79±0.01	NS
Week2	2.09±0.16 ^a	1.88±0.12 ^{ab}	1.84±0.10 ^b	2.02±0.12 ^{ab}	*
Week3	1.93±0.22b	2.24±0.43 ^{ab}	2.00±0.29b	2.55±0.10°	*
Week4	1.07±0.05 ^b	1.34±0.22°	1.24±0.16 ^{ab}	1.13±0.06 ^{ab}	*
Week5	1.69±-14 ^b	2.14±0.24 ^{ab}	3.27±1.58°	2.86±1.20 ^{ab}	*

 $^{^{}a}$, b , c Mean within the same Row followed by different superscripts are significantly (P<0.05) different

^{**:}Highlysignificant different at (P≤0.01)

^{*:} Significant different at (P≤0.05)

Table No (5): Effect of feeding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum mixture on weekly live body weight (g/bird):

Treatment	0.0	0.25	0.5	0.75	Sig level
	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	
Week					
Week1	350.20±16.18	339.16±23.17	360.41±12.21	359.37±13.44	NS
Week2	582.92±29.10	600.62±22.50	601.24±36.65	622.50±19.84	NS
Week3	813.70±51.86	871.03±28.17	901.41±66.78	892.50±88.87	NS
Week4	1151.66±46.91 ^b	1265.66±52.69ab	1266.66±67.68 ^{ab}	1319.66±121.76 ^a	*
Week5					
	1488.94±15.50	1523.16±91.73	1502.00±48.40	1464.04±185.25	NS

 $^{^{\}alpha}$, b , c Mean within the same Row followed by different superscripts are significantly (P<0.05) different

^{** :}Highly significant different at (P $\!\leq\!0.01$)

^{* :} Significant different at (P≤0.05)

Table (6): Effect of feeding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum-mixtureon overall performance of weeks broiler chiceks:

Treatment	0.0	0.25	0.5	0.75	
	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	M±Std.d	
Parameters					Sig level
Initial weight (g)	155.00±1.08	154.79±0.36	153.12±0.62	153.30±1.35	NS
Feed Intake (g)	2138.75±56.38b	2599.12±97.08°	2471.89±142.76°	2491.95±269.23°	*
Weight gain (g/bird)	1333.94±14.45	1368.37±91.40	1348.88±47.85	1310.74±184.32	NS
Feed conversa- tion ratio(g feed /g weight)	1.60±0.05b	1.90±0.08 ^a	1.83±0.17 ^a	1.90±0.07ª	*
Final live body weight (g)	1488.94±15.50	1523.16±91.73	1502.00±48.40	1464.04±185.25	NS

 $^{^{}a}$, b , c Mean within the same Row followed by different superscripts are significantly different (P<0.05)

^{** :}Highlysignificant different at (P≤0.01)

^{* :} Significant different at (P≤0.05)

Table No(7): Effect of feeding Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminmium mixture on internal organs weights:

Treatment	0.0 M±Std.d	0.25 M±Std.d	0.5 M±Std.d	0.75 M±Std.d	
Parameters					Sig level
Liver weight (g)	30.00±0.00ab	28.33±3.81 ^b	30.00±4.33 ^{ab}	35.00±2.50°	*
Heart weight (g)	6.66±1.44 ^{ab}	7.50±0.00°	5.00±0.00b	6.66±1.44 ^{ab}	*
Gizzard weight (g)	21.66±1.44	24.16±5.77	18.33±1.44	23.33±5.77	NS

^a, ^b, ^cMean within the same Row followed by different superscripts are significantly different(P<0.05)

.

^{** :}Highly significant different at (P \leq 0.01)

^{* :} Significant different at ($P\!\!\leq\!\!0.05$)

CHAPTER FIVE

5.0 DISCUSSION

Feeding diets contain the mixture Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminumas growth promoter on the performance of five weeks old broiler chicks results showed significant differences in the total feed intake between the treatments were the treated groups recorded high feed intake compared to the control group this finding was agreed with those of (Galib A.M. Al-Kassi (2010) and Essa, et al (2010)) who stated that the addition of Cuminum cyminum and Coriandrumsativum, increases the broiler feed intake. The results showed significant differences in the feed conversion ratio among the treatment were the control group recorded the best feed conversion ratio compared with treated groups, this finding was conflicting with those of (Galib A.M. Al-Kassi (2010) and Essa. H et al (2010)) who stated that addition of Cuminumcyminum and Coriandrumsativum decreases the broilerfeed conversion ratio. Total weight gain and final body weight were not significantly affected with the inclusion of Cuminumcyminum and Coriandrumsativum. This results were against those of (Galib A.M. Al-Kassi (2010) and Essa. H et al (2010)) they indicated that birds fedCuminumcyminum and Coriandrumsativum were recorded a significant improvement in weight gain and final body weight The result showed that there are no significant differences in gizzard weight among the treatments but significant differences were observed in heart and liver weight. However, reports about the effects of feeds seed on broilers are inconsistent. Some authors found thatmany and spices had positive effects on animal nutrition (Wenk, 2006, ALherbs jaff,2011). Whereas others did not find clear evidence (Windisch, et al ,2008).

CHAPTER SIX

6.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS:

6.1 Conclusion:

Based on the results of this study the following conclusions can be withdrawn:

- 1. addition of Coriandrumsativum and Cuminum cyminum mixtureas growth promoter in broiler diet resulted in effect on broiler performance in terms of increasing feed intake and feed conversation ratio.
- 2. Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum mixture used in broiler feed up to 0.75% without adverse effect.

6.2 Recommendations:

Further research on the effect of feed Coriandrumsativum and Cuminumcyminum mixture on immune response and carcass characteristic should be done

References:

Adams, C.A. (2004). Nutricines in poultry production: Focus on bioactive feed ingredients. Nutrition Abstracts and Reviews Seri B 74, 1N-12N.

Adedokun, S.A, Sands. J.S, and Adeola, O.(2004). Determining the equivalent phosphorus released by an Escherichia coli-derived phytase in broiler chicks. Canadian Journal of Animal Science 84, 437-444.

Ahmed, A., ghanbari ,A. and Gelavi .,M. (2004). Effect of animalmanure on quantitative and qualitative yield and chemical composition of essential oil cumin (Cuminumcyminum). J. Iran . Field Crop Res., Vol. 1385.

Alcicek, A., BozkurtM. andCabuk, M. (2003). The effect of an essential oil combination derived from selected herbs growing wild in turkey on broiler performance. South African Journal of Animal Science. 33; 89-92.

Alder, A.J. and Holub, B.J. (1997). Effect of garlic and fish-oil supplementation on serum lipid and lipoprotein concentrations in hypercholesterolemic men. American Journal of Clinical Nutrition, 65, 445-450.

Al-Jaff, F.K. (2011). Effect of coriander seeds as diet ingredient on blood parameters of broiler chickens raised under high ambient temperature, Int. j. Poultry Sci., vol. 50, No 2, pp. 82-86.

Al-kassie,G.A.(2009). Influence of two plant extracts derived from thyme and cinnamon on broiler performance. Pakistan Veterinary Jounal,29(4), pp. 169-173.

Augspurger, N.R, Webel ,D.M. Lei .X.G and Baker D.H. (2003). Efficacy of an E. coli phytase expressed in yeast for releasing phytate-bound phosphorus in young chicks and pigs. Journal of Animal Science **81**, 474-483.

Barnes, E. M. (1978). The effect of antibiotic supplements on the faecal streptococci (lancefield group d) of poultry. British Veterinary Journal. 114:333–344.

Bedford, M.R. and Morgan., A.J. (1996). The use of enzymes in poultry diets. World's Poultry Science Journal **52**, 61-68.

Boyd, F. M., and Edwards, H. M. Jr. (1967). Fat absorption by germ-free chicks. Poult. Sci. 46:1481-1483.

Chang, S.T. Chen, P.F. and Chang, S.C.(2011). Antibacterial Activity of Osmophloeum. Journal of Ethno pharmacology., 77, pp. 123-127.

Choct, M. (**2009**). Effects of organic acids, prebiotics and enzymes on control of necrotic enteritis and performance of broiler chickens. School of Rural Science and Agriculture, University of New England.

Choct, M. and Annison, G. (1992). Anti-nutritive effect of wheat pentosans in broiler chickens: Roles of viscosity and gut microflora. British Poultry Science 33, 821-834.

Demir, E., Kilinc, K., Yildirim, Y., Dincer, F. and Eseceli, H.(2008).comparative effect of mint, sage, thyme and flavomycine in wheat-based broiler diets. Archive zootechnica, 11:54-63.

Essa.H.Sunbul. J. H. A,Farah.k, A, and Hanan.E. A .(2010) Effect of Coriander Seed (Coriandrumsativum L.) as Diet Ingredient on BroilersPerformance under High Ambient Temperature.international Journal of Poultry Science 9 (10): 968-971, 2010 SSN 1682-8356.

Fuller, R. (1989). Probiotics in man and animals. Journal of Applied Bacteriology **66**, 365-378.

Fuller, R., Cole, C. B. and Coates, M. E. (1984). The role of Streptococcusfaecium in antibiotic-relieved growth depression in chickens, p. 395-403. In M. Woodbine (ed.), Antimicrobials and agriculture. Butterworths, London.

Galib, A.M. and Al-kassi(2010) .Effect of feeding cumin(cuminumcyminum) on the performance and blood traits of broiler chicks .

Department of Puplic health veterinary medical college University of Baghdad ,Iraq. Pakistan Journal of Nutrition 9(1)72-75, ISSN1680-5194.Asian network for scientific information .

Gibson, G.R. and Fuller, R. (2000). Aspects of in vitro and in vivo research approaches directed toward identifying probiotics and prebiotics for human use. Journal of Nutrition **130**, 391S-395S.

Gibson, G.R. and Roberfroid, M.B. (1995). Dietary modulation of the human colonic microbiota: Introducing the concept of prebiotics. Journal of Nutrition 125, 1401-1412.

Grashorn, M.A. (2010). Use of phytobiotics in broiler nutrition—an alternative to infeed antibiotics? Journal of Animal and Feed Sciences, 19, 338–347.

Guerrero, L., Claret, A., Verbeke, W., Enderli, G., Zakowska-Biemans, S., Vanhonacker, F., Issanchou, M., Sadjdakowska, M., Signe Granli, B., Contel, M., Hersleth, M. and Scalvedi, L. (2010). Perception of traditional food product in six European regions using free word association. Food Quality and preference, 21, pp 225-233.

Hashemi, S.R., and Davoodi,H. (2010). Phytogenics as new feed additive in poultry industry. J. Anim. Vet. Adv. 9(17); 2295-2304.

Ibrahim, M. R., AbdElLatif, M. S. and El Yamany, A. T. (1998). Effect of adding some natural growth promoters to broiler chicks diets on growth performance ,digestibility and same metabolic functions .J.Agric .SCi .M ansoura Univ.,32 3 1029-1037.

Jazani, N.H., Zartoshti. M. and Shahabi,S. (2008). Antibacterial Effect of IranianCuminumcyminum Essential oil on Burn of Pseudomoasaeruginosa .Int .J. pharmacology.

Jonas, D., Skemaite, M. Kirkilaite, G. Vinauskiene, R.andVenskutonis, P.R. (2007). Antioxidant and Antimicrobial properties of caraway (Carumcarvi L.) and cumin (Cuminumcyminum) extracts. Veterinarija IR Zootechnika T., Vol. 40.

Jukes, T .H. (1972). Antibiotics in animal feeds and animal production. bio Source 22, 526-534.

Jukes, T.H. (1977). The history of the "antibiotic growth effect." Federation Proceedings 37, 2514-2518.

Jukes, T.H. (1985). Some historical notes on chlortetracycline. Reviews of Infectious Diseases 7, 702-707.

Kamel, C. (2010): Tracing modes of action and the roles of plant extracts in non-ruminants. In:RecentAdvancesin Animal Nutrition. (Garnsworthy, P. C., J. Wiseman, Eds.), Nottingham University Press, Nottingham, UK. pp. 135-150.

Kostadinović, **Lj. and Lević**, **J. (2012**). Use of phytogenic products for pig and broiler diseases. Proceedings of 15th International Feed Technology Symposium, Novi Sad, Serbia, pp. 64-74.

La Ragione, R.M. and Woodward, M.J. (2003). Competitive exclusion by Bacillus subtilis spores of Salmonella enterica serotype Enteritidis and Clostridium perfringens in young chickens. Veterinary Microbiology 94, 245-256.

Lewis, M.R, Rose, S.P., Mackenzie, A.M. and Tucker, L.A(2003). Effect of dietary incuiusion of plant extract on the growth performance male broiler .Br.bolt.sci .,44(Suppl.1):43-44.

Mansoub, N.H. (2011). Comparative effects of using garlic as probiotic on performance and serum composition of broiler chickens. Annals of Biological Research, 2, 486-490.

Mitsch P, Zitter-eglseer K, Kohler B, Gabler C, Losa R, Zimpernik I. (2004). The effect of two different blends of essential oil component on the proliferation of clostridium perfringes in the intestines of broiler chickens. PoultSci 83:669-675.

Morishita, T.Y., Aye, P.P. Harr, B.S, Cobb, C.W, and Clifford, J.R. (1997). Evaluation of an avian-specific probiotic to reduce the colonization and shedding of Campylobacter jejuni in broilers. Avian Diseases 41, 850-855.

Muthamma Milan, K.S., Dholakia, H., KaulTiku, P. and Vishveshwaraiah, P. (2008). Enhancement of digestive enzymatic activity by cumin (Cuminumcyminum L.) and role of spent cumin as a bionutrient. Food Chemistry 110, 678–683.

Nadeem, M., Anjum, F.M., Khan, M.I. and Tehseen, S. (2013).nutritional andmedicinal aspects of coriander(CoriandrumsativumL.). A review. Br. Food J. 115, 743-755.

Naeemasa1, A., Alaw.A, Qotbi1, A., Seidavi1, Norris, D. Brown and Ginindza, M. (2015). Department of Animal Science, Rasht Branch, Islamic Azad University, Rasht, Iran. Department of Agricultural Economics and Animal Production, University of Limpopo, Private Bag X1106, Effects of coriander (Coriandrumsativum L.) seed powder and extract on performance of broiler chickens.

Nurmi, E. and Rantala, M. (1974).New aspects of Salmonella infection in broiler production. Nature, **241**: 210 – 211.

Ocak, N., .Erener,G.AK,B.FSungu,M., Altop,A. Ozmen,A.(2008). Performance of broiler fed diets supplemented with dry peppermint (Menthapiperita L.) or thyme (thymus vulgris L.) leaves as growth promoter sourse .Cz. J. Anim. Sci 53:174-180.

Pathak, N.L., Kasture, S.B., Bhatt, N.M. and Rathod, J.D., (2011) "Phytopharmacological properties of Coriander sativum as a potential medicinal tree: an overview", J. App. Pharmaceutical Sci., Vol. 1 No. 4, pp. 20-25.

Platel.K. and Srinvasain. (1996) Influence of dietary spices or their active-principles on digestive enzymes of small intestinal mucosa in rats. International Journal of Food Sciences and Nutrition 47, 55-59.

Platel.K., (2000). Stimulatory influence of select spices on bile secretion in rats Nutrition Research 20,1493-1503.

Pluske, J.R, Pethick, D.W, Hopwood, D.E, and Hampson, D.J. (2002). Nutritional influences on some major enteric bacterial diseases of pig. Nutrition Research Reviews 15, 333-371.

Puvača, N., Stanaćev, V., Beuković, M., Ljubojević, D., Kostadinović, Lj., Džinić, N. (2014). Effect of phytogenic feed additive (*Allium sativum*L.) on broiler chicken nutrition on breast meat quality and tissues cholesterol content. Proceedings of International Scientific Conference, Vukovar, Croatia, 7, 75-80.

Puvača, N., Stanaćev, V., Glamočić, D., Lević, J., Perić, L., Stanaćev, V., Milić, D. (2013). Beneficial effects of phytoadditives in broiler nutrition. World's Poultry Science Journal, 69, 27-34.

RahmatnejadandE.,Roshanfekr, H. (2009). Evaluation the effect of several non-antibiotic additives on growth performance of broiler chickens. Journal of Animal and Veterinary Advances, 8, 1757-1760.

Rajeshwari, U. and Andallu, B. (2011). Medicinal benefits of coriander (Coriandrumsativum L). Spatula, vol. 1 No. 1, pp.51-58.

Roth, F., Kirchgessner, X. (1998). Organic acids as feed additives for young pigs: Nutritional and gastrointestinal effects. Journal of Animal Feed Science, 8, 25-33.

Sagdic, O., Kuscu, A., Ozcan, M. and Ozceik, S. (2002). Effects of Turkish-spice extracts at various concentrations on the growth of Escherichia coli O157:H7. Food microbiology 19, 473-480.

Schneitz, C. (2005). Competitive exclusion in poultry - 30 years of research. Food Control **16**, 657-667.

Sema, A., Dostbil N. Alemder.S, (2007). Antimicrobial Activity of Some Spices Used in The Meat Industry .bull Vet .In .Pulway,51:5357.

Simmering, R. and Blaut, M. (2001).Pro- and prebiotics - the tasty guardian angels? Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology **55**, 19-28.

Simon. O. (2005).Micro-organisms as feed additives-probiotics. Advances in Pork Production, 39, 161-167.

SPSS (2007).statistical package of social science. version 16.0 computer program.

Stanaćev, V., Milošević, N., Plavša, N., Bjedov, S., Stanaćev, V., Puvača, N., Arapović, Ž. (2010). Phyto additives (Allium sativumL.) in the diet of fattening chickens. Proceedings of the 14th International Symposium of Feed Technology, Novi Sad, pp. 295-302.

Stanaćev, V., Glamočić, D., Milošević, N., Perić, L., Puvača, N., Stanaćev, V., Milić, D., Plavša, N. (2011). Effect of garlic (*Allium sativum*L) in fattening chicks nutrition. African Journal of Agricultural Research, 6, 943-948.

Stanaćev, V., Glamočić, D., Milošević, N., Perić, L., Puvača, N., Stanaćev, V., Milić, D., Plavša, N. (2012). Influence of garlic (*Allium sativum*L.) and cop-

per as phytoadditives in the feed on the content of cholesterol in the tissues of the chickens. Journal of Medicinal Plants Research, 6, 2816-2819.

Sudanese Ministry of Livestock, Fisheries and Rangelands information Center. (2011). Statistical bulletin for Animal Resources, issue- No. 20, (2001).

Suppakul, P., Miltz,J. Sonneveld,K. and. BiggerS. W. (2003). Antimicrobial properties of basil and its possible application in food packaging. J. Agric. Food Chem. 51:3197-3207.

Taback, M., Armon,R. and Neeman,I. (1999). Cinnamon extracts inhibitory effect on Helicobacter pylori .J. Ethnophamacol .,67:269-277.

Tanamai, J., Veeramanomai, S., Indrakosas, N.(2004). The efficacy of cholesterol-lowering action and side effects of garlic enteric coated tablets in man. Journal of the Medical Association of Thailand, 87, 1156-1161.

Toghyani, M. ,Toghyani, M. A. Gheisari, Chalankri .,G. and MohammadM. rezaci. (2010). Growth performance , serum biochemistry and blood hematology of broiler chicks fed deferments levels of black seeds (Nigella sativa) and peppermint (Menthapiperita). Livest .sci. 129:173-178.

Wenk, C. (2000). Why all the discussionabout herbs? Proc. Alltech, S16th Ann. Symp. Biotechnol.In The Feed Industry.Ed. Lyons, T.P., Alltech Tech. Publ., Nottingham, University Press, Nicholasville, KY.Pp.79-96.

Wenk, C.(2006). Are herbs, botanicals and other related substances adequate replacements for antimicrobial Verstegen, M.W.A., Wageningen Academic Publishers, The Netherlands. pp. 329-340.

Wierup, M. (2001). The Swedish experience of the 1986 ban of antimicrobial growth promoters, with specialreference to animal health, disease prevention, productivity, and usage of antimicrobials. Microbial Drug Resistance, 7, 183–190.

Wilson, K. J. and Bayer, R. S(2000).Poultry nutrition information for small flock.<u>http://WWW.oznet.ksu.edu/libarry</u>/lvstk2/ep80.pdf.

Windish, W., Schedle, K., Plitzner, C., Kroismayr, A. (2008). Use of phytogenic products as feed additives for swine and poultry. Journal of animal Science, 86, 140-148..

Zekić, V., Puvača, N., Milić, D., Beuković, M., Glamočić, M., Vukelić, N., Lukač, D., Zekić, S. (2014). Effect of garlic powder in broiler chicken nutrition: Emphasis on production economic efficiency coasts and chicken meat quality. Custos e @gronegócio, 10 (2), 86-98.